
 

January 30, 2009                                                              Special Council Meeting                                             Page 1 of 3  

MINUTES OF THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF SILVER CITY 
SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING 

Grant County Administration Center, 1400 Hwy. 180, Silver City, NM 
January 30, 2009 – 5:30 P.M. 

 
 
Present:  James R. Marshall, Mayor      Also Present:        Alex C. Brown, Town Manager-Finance Director 
                A. Judith Ward, District 1       Ann L. Mackie, Town Clerk 
                Thomas Nupp, District 2       Robert L. Scavron, Town Attorney 
                Simon Wheaton-Smith, District 3       Ed Reynolds, Silver City Police Chief      
                Steve May, District 4         Peter Russell, Community Development Director 
 
CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Mayor Marshall called the Special Meeting to order at 5:33 
p.m. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS –  
A.  Approval / Disapproval of Ordinance No. 1152:  amending Chapter 94, (Parks and Recreation) of the Town 
of Silver City Municipal Code, relating to Rules and Regulations pertaining to the use of the Silver City Skate 
Park.  Mayor Marshall presented the ordinance and commented that the Council had recently learned that the Town 
ordinances (with the exception of the Uniform Traffic Code) did not control children’s behavior so amendments were 
made to Ordinance No. 1152.  The amendments to the ordinance were made to separate persons over 18 years of age 
from persons under 18 years of age.  He commented that State law preempts the Town on children, and the State’s 
penalties were far less than what the Town had proposed.  He stated the only penalty that the Town could assert would 
be to issue a criminal trespass if a person under 18 years of age failed to follow the rules on Town property, and the 
ordinance was amended accordingly.  He stated the ordinance was not amended with regard to persons over 18 years 
of age.   
 
Mayor Marshall asked for public input and adults and children from the audience commented on the following:  how 
the Town was rushing to judgment since the skatepark had only been in operation for two months; how liability was 
not an issue since there were few lawsuits in other cities; how there was greater safety in the park than on the streets; 
how the skatepark had improved the attitudes of the youth; how it was a good idea when the Police Department handed 
out free helmets; how people should be educated about using helmets and not punished; the creation of a committee; 
how the penalty for not wearing a helmet should not be a crime; how organized competitions at the skatepark would 
encourage the youth to wear a helmet so they could compete; how parents were using the skatepark as a leverage to get 
their children to improve their grades and behavior; how bikes at the skatepark were more dangerous than 
skateboarders not wearing helmets; how people should take personal responsibility for themselves and follow the laws; 
how parents should be responsible for their children and make them wear helmets; how the skatepark had a good 
atmosphere and was a wonderful addition to the community; how the Town could provide yellow helmets that would 
remain at the park; and how the Town had purchased helmets to give away through grant sources.   
 
Police Chief Reynolds commented on the enforcement of the rules at the skatepark and stated there would be a period 
of education, written warnings, and enforcement of the law with criminal trespass.  There was further discussion from 
Council on the amount of Police Department involvement at the skatepark; how the police would track offenders; the 
possibility of having volunteers at the skatepark; how yellow helmets were a good idea; and the responsibility of 
parents to give their children consequences.  Councilor Wheaton-Smith asked Attorney Scavron if the Town had 
liabilities beyond what the self-insurer’s fund would pay.  Attorney Scavron commented that the Town had a $5,000 
deductible.  He stated the Town would be covered from a lawsuit if the insurance company was satisfied that the Town 
had posted a sign to skate at your own risk and had a properly designed park for the purpose that it was being put to.  
He stated the main areas for a lawsuit were failure of design, the use on unintended use that you permit, or a failure to 
maintain.  He commented that he did not see a liability issue.  He spoke further on the children’s code, delinquent acts, 
and criminal trespass.  Peter Russell, Community Development Director, commented on his concerns about 
criminalization, the use of helmets and distribution of helmets and educational materials, and how people should 
respect the gift of the skatepark.   



 

January 30, 2009                                                              Special Council Meeting                                             Page 2 of 3  

 
Councilor Nupp commented that he was not concerned with a kid’s self-esteem, etc., but he was concerned about 
protecting the Town from multi-million dollar lawsuits from a parent who had a child with an injury or brain injury at 
the skatepark.  He said the Town had a liability issue and the only sound solution was that everybody that used the 
skatepark, regardless of age, must wear a helmet in the skatepark or to shut it down.  He offered that the skatepark 
could be sold to private enterprise and someone else could worry about the liability problems.  He stated that it should 
be shut down temporarily to get a solution.   
 
Councilor May made a motion to defer action on Ordinance No. 1152 and to send it to the Parks and Recreation Board 
for up to 90 days to review, revise, and develop a management plan that would include hiring park monitors to be paid 
for by charging admission fees at the park; he also included in the motion that the Council would direct the Town 
Manager to close the park during that period.  Councilor Wheaton-Smith seconded the motion as stated.  Councilor 
Ward stated she did not want so many stipulations in the motion; she asked if Councilor May would accept a friendly 
amendment to move to defer action to the Parks and Recreation Board for further review.  Councilor May stated a rigid 
timeline was needed to get it resolved as quickly as possible.  Councilor Ward said it was not necessary to say that they 
have to charge, that the Parks and Recreation Board should come back with suggestions.  She did not think they 
needed to shut down the park.  Councilor May would not accept the amendment.  Councilor Nupp stated he would 
endorse the motion, but made a friendly amendment that it would be up to 60 days instead of 90 days because it was so 
popular;  they did not want to punish kids that would comply, and would want to get it opened as fast it they could.  
Councilor May stated he could live with the 60 days.  Councilor Wheaton-Smith seconded the friendly amendment by 
Councilor Nupp.  Mayor Marshall received Councilor May’s confirmation that he wanted the park closed for the 60 
days, or earlier, if the Parks and Recreation Board came back to Council before the 60 days.   Mayor Marshall stated 
that he strongly opposed the closure of the park because the liability issues had been answered regarding the Town’s 
responsibility.  He said that he had no objection to sending it to the Parks & Recreation Board for their consideration 
and proposal of new rules, but the Town was currently protected with the current laws,  rules, and insurance that were 
in place, and closing it down would be making the wrong statement.  There was further discussion about closing the 
park.  Councilor Ward stated she was adamantly against closing the park.   
 
Councilor Wheaton-Smith asked the Town Attorney if closing the park was outside the scope of the legal notice of the 
meeting.  Attorney Scavron confirmed that it was, and stated that the Town Manager had the authority to close the 
park, and the Council could not change the powers of the Town Manager at that Special Council Meeting. Mayor 
Marshall commented that if the public had been notified that the Council would be considering closing the park at that 
meeting that a drastically different audience would be present.  Councilor May stated that the people that had a vested 
interest in the skatepark were present, and did speak, but the Town needed to do something drastic to get the attention 
of the kids and their parents.  He stated that the Council had a responsibility to the tax payers of the community and to 
protect their interests by making sure the Town would not get sued.  He said that the tax payers paid for the park and if 
the kids were not going to follow the rules then it should be shut down.  Attorney Scavron suggested that if the Town 
would challenge the kids to behave and be responsible, before closing the park on a certain date, that the kids’ own 
self-interests may bring them to compliance.  Councilor Nupp, Councilor Wheaton-Smith, and Councilor May made 
additional comments on how the rules have been ignored; how immediate attention to the situation was required; the 
importance of accountability; how a vote on the closure of the skatepark at the next Council Meeting was necessary; 
and how the situation at the skatepark was a crisis.  Councilor May stated that he felt justified to ask that the park be 
shut down during the time that the Parks and Recreation Board developed a plan to operate it with some type of 
monitoring.   
 
Mayor Marshall stated that they needed to deal with the motion and he would have to reject the portion of the motion 
that asked for the skatepark to be closed immediately because it was not noticed to the public on the agenda.  He stated 
that if the Council wanted to declare an emergency and deal with something in a different manner, they would have to 
do that on a later date.  Councilor May stated that he was putting the Mayor on notice that if he declared it to be out of 
order, and a serious accident occurred before a decision was made on closing the park, that he thought the Town would 
be liable and he wanted no part of it.  He stated that he felt that they were setting themselves up.   
 
Councilor May stated that he would withdraw the part of the motion about closing the park during the interim, if 
Councilor Wheaton-Smith agreed, but he would continue to ask that they defer Ordinance No. 1152 to the Parks and 



 

January 30, 2009                                                              Special Council Meeting                                             Page 3 of 3  

Recreation Board for up to 60 days to review, revise, and to develop a management plan that would work, and protect 
the Town’s liability.  Mayor Marshall announced that there was a new motion to defer action on Ordinance No. 1152 
and refer to the Parks and Recreation Board with a 60 day timeframe.  He asked if that was correct, and Councilor May 
stated it was correct.  Mayor Marshall asked for a second, and Councilor Nupp seconded.  Councilor Wheaton-Smith 
stated that he had not yet withdrawn his second to the first motion.  There was further discussion.  Councilor Nupp 
withdrew his second to the motion.  Councilor Wheaton-Smith seconded the motion as stated.  He commented that he 
would consider in the next week or so with Councilor May addressing resolution to be on the immediate next Council 
Meeting to legitimately close the skatepark, and he would view how he considered that based on his personal 
observations in the next week at the park on the percentage of people wearing helmets.  Councilor Nupp asked the 
newspapers to emphasize Councilor Wheaton-Smith’s comments because he agreed with him and they wanted the 
message to be conveyed so the citizens and kids would comply.  Attorney Scavron reminded the Council that the Town 
Manager had the legislative authority to close the park at any time.  Chief Reynolds stated that the Town Manager had 
the power to enforce the rules with a criminal trespass. 
 
Councilor May called for the question.  Mayor Marshall announced that there was a motion and a second, and there 
would be no further discussion on deferring action on Ordinance No. 1152 and referring it to the Parks and Recreation 
Board with a 60 days deadline to come back with recommendations.  He asked if it was correctly stated.  Councilor 
May and Councilor Wheaton-Smith said it was.  All were in favor, motion passed. 
 
ADJOURNMENT – Councilor Wheaton-Smith made a motion to adjourn at 7:10 p.m.  Councilor Nupp seconded the 
motion.  All were in favor, motion passed. 
        
       /s/ 
       ___________________________________ 
       James R. Marshall, Mayor 
 
       Attest: 
       /s/ 
       ___________________________________ 
       Ann L. Mackie, Town Clerk 
 


